ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SCCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
April 2, 2004
1:31 p. m

TAPE (S) 04-18
MEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Fred Dyson, Chair
Senat or Lyda Green, Vice Chair
Senator Gary W/ ken

Senat or Bettye Davis

Senat or G et chen Cuess

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO. 364

"An Act relating to liability for expenses of placenent in
certain nmental health facilities; relating to the nental health
treatment assistance program and providing for an effective
date."

MOVED CSSB 364(HES) OUT OF COW TTEE with Letter of Intent

CS FOR HOUSE BI LL NO 25(JUD)

"An Act relating to health care decisions, including do not
resuscitate orders, anat om cal gifts, and nental heal t h
treatment decisions, and to powers of attorney relating to
health care, including anatomcal gifts and nental health

treatment decisions; and providing for an effective date."
Bl LL POSTPONED TO April 7, 2004

PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 364

SHORT TITLE: LIMT STATE AID FOR MENTAL HEALTH CARE
SPONSCOR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

03/ 08/ 04 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 08/ 04 (S) HES, FIN
03/ 19/ 04 (S) HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

SENATE HES COW TTEE -1- April 2, 2004



03/ 19/ 04 (S -- Meeting Cancel ed --

03/ 22/ 04 (S) HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 22/ 04 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 22/ 04 (S) M NUTE( HES)

03/ 24/ 04 (S) HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 24/ 04 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 24/ 04 (S) M NUTE( HES)

04/ 02/ 04 (S) HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

MR. BILL HOGAN, Director

Di vi sion of Behavioral Health

Department of Health & Social Services

PO Box 110601

Juneau, AK 99801-0601

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented the proposed changes to SB 364.

MR. RI CHARD RAI NERY, Executive Director

Al aska Mental Health Board

431 N. Franklin

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke to SB 364, suggesting a possible
contradi ction between Sec. 2 and the Letter of Intent.

MR. ROD BETIT, President

Al aska State Hospital and Nursing Association ( ASHNA)

426 Main Street

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions pertaining to SB 364, and
testified that Sec. 2 trunps everything.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-18, SIDE A

CHAI R FRED DYSON called the Senate Health, Education and Soci al
Services Standing Commttee neeting to order at 1:31 p.m
Present at the call to order were Senators G een, WIken, Davis,

GQuess, and Chair Dyson.

SB 364-LIM T STATE AID FOR MENTAL HEALTH CARE

The conmittee took up SB 364.

CHAI R DYSON noved to adopt Anmendnent 1, [and clarified version A
was before the commttee].

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 2- April 2, 2004



SENATOR GARY W LKEN obj ected for purposes of clarification.

MR. Bl LL HOGAN, Di rector, Division of Behavioral Heal t h,
Department of Health & Social Services (DHSS), addressed the
changes nmade to SB 364. He said a Letter of Intent had been
submtted for the commttee s review and approval outlining DHSS
intent to continue hospital-based care, inpatient evaluation,
and treatnment services pertaining to nental health care.

CHAIR DYSON asked M. Hogan if the Letter of Intent was to
acconpany SB 364 and he received confirmation this was correct.

CHAI R DYSON asked if there was any objection to the Letter of
I ntent.

SENATOR W LKEN referred to paragraph 2, line 1, noting that the
word, “appropriations” was underlined, and asked if this was
i ntentional.

MR. HOGAN responded he did not know why it was underlined, nor
did he know the reason for the witing on the bottom of the
page, but believed this had been faxed to/from the attorney
general’s office. He did not believe either should be there.

SENATOR W LKEN made note that the underline in paragraph 2, line
1, and the witten notes at the bottom of the page would be
renmoved.

SENATOR W LKEN renoved his objection to adopt Anendnent 1.
[ Because the Letter of Intent and Amendnent 1 were before the
commttee simultaneously, the notion to adopt Anmendnent 1 was
treated as withdrawn. ]

SENATOR WLKEN then noved to adopt the Letter of Intent as
anmended.

CHAIR DYSON asked if there was any objection. Seeing and
heari ng none, the Letter of Intent [as anended] was adopted.

SENATOR W LKEN t hen noved to adopt Anendnent 1.

CHAIR DYSON objected so that M. Hogan could explain Arendnent
1.

MR. HOGAN noted the use of “shall” rather than “nmay” on page 2,
line 28. He said Section 2 is retained, and the change on page

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 3- April 2, 2004



2, line 28, would not preclude or change the intent as outlined
in Section 2. Page 4, lines 23 — 28 are deleted. I n wor ki ng
with various stakeholders, particularly ASHNA, Mental Health
Board, and Mental Health Trust, the departnent agreed that this
could be deleted without inpairing the intent of the bill. Page
5, lines 12 — 13, Sections 1 — 9, are deleted, and Sections 1 -
8 are inserted; this recomendation reflects a re-nunbering.
The other subsequent changes on page 5, line 20, and page 5,
line 21 are related to the reduction in the overall nunber of
sections.

CHAI R DYSON asked if there were questions on the anmendnent.
MR. RI CHARD RAI NERY, Executive Director of Al aska Mental Health

Board, said the board is generally in support of the changes,
but because there has been little tinme to discuss the changes

with the division, he referred to the Letter of Intent,
indicating in the event of a shortfall in the appropriation, the
department will make every effort to identify additional
financing sources, and noted a contradiction with Section 2 of
the bill. It says, “Notw thstanding any contrary provision of
this chapter, financial assistance under this chapter is subject
to appropriation by the legislature.” In talking with the

division, he wunderstands they do not believe there is a
contradiction, but thought nmenbers m ght consider this.

SENATOR CGRETCHEN GUESS asked the board’ s view on SB 364, given
t he anmendnent .

MR. RAINERY replied the board only had hesitation wth a
possi ble conflict in Section 2.

CHAI R DYSON said he understood from the comm ssioner that they
were asking for nore flexibility to transfer funds as needed.

MR. RAINERY said this was how it was described to him as well
and if that's the case, then “it’'s not an issue.”

CHAIR DYSON said it was clear the last tine SB 364 was heard,
and the admnistration agreed, that there wouldn't be folks
badl y needing treatnent who wouldn’t get it.

SENATOR GUESS said she thought this was the intent, but in |aw
there are multiple adm nistrations, multiple comm ssioners and
di rectors. This bill, wth Section 2 in it, still |eaves the
possibility of funds not being available for these services, and
therefore, that |eaves either “the rest of us to pay, or that

SENATE HES COW TTEE -4- April 2, 2004



person is on the street, or goes to API, and it still provides
the uncertainty to the providers to ensure that we have this
capacity in the state.”

CHAI R DYSON asked if she wanted to suggest an anendnent.

SENATOR GUESS noved to renove Section 2. [This was considered as
conceptual Anendnent 2.]

A roll call vote was taken. Senators Guess and Davis voted in
favor of the notion; Senators Geen, WIken, and Dyson voted
against it. Therefore the anmendnent fail ed.

1:45 p. m

CHAI R DYSON noted the departnment had made significant efforts to
answer questions that had come up; those answers were provided
in the commttee packets. He referred to his question of “How
can we be sure when the state pays a provider, that they aren’t
cost-shifting, and aren’'t shifting costs from another function
they provide to this one, where you all faithfully pay?”

MR. HOGAN said regulations were noticed and the public coment
period cl osed Wednesday, March 31, and allowed the departnent to
determne rates for distinct psychiatric units in acute care
hospitals that would be different from how rates are established
for other beds within the hospital. This npbves toward assuring
the cost of providing nental health care is reflected in the
rate rather than including additional costs from throughout the
hospi t al

CHAI R DYSON asked if billing and accounting could be audited to
ensure that “we weren’t being taken advantage of ?”

MR. HOGAN said he believes the departnent has that authority.
CHAI R DYSON asked, “Have you?”

MR. HOGAN said there are routine site reviews of all community
and nental health providers, and nedical records were reviewed
at a recent site review of the psychiatric unit at Fairbanks
Menorial Hospital. Also, it is a requirenent for any community
and nental health grantee to annually submt an independent
audit to the departnent for review.

CHAI R DYSON said he knows “not to take anecdotes as data” but he
keeps hearing horror stories, such as a man whose wife was in

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 5- April 2, 2004



the hospital who was billed $1.50 for every g-tip she used. He
asked, “What do we allow in terns of mark-up, that providers
bill the state for?”

MR. HOGAN replied the hospital rate is determ ned, based on a
Medi care cost report, and there are a nunber of different
factors determning that particular rate. He said he would be
glad to further research those factors, and to provide that
i nformation.

CHAI R DYSON indicated he’'d ask that of sonebody affiliated with
the hospitals so M. Hogan shouldn’t bother, and asked if the
answer is the State doesn’'t get billed for the cost, but for the
al | owabl e rate.

MR. HOGAN said the allowable rate is based on cost, so they are
| i nked.

CHAI R DYSON said, “So the answer to ny question is yes?”
MR. HOGAN confirnmed, yes.

SENATOR WLKEN referred to the conmmttee packet [a table
entitled “2003 Mnthly Federal Poverty GCuidelines for Al aska’]
and asked for help with the acronyns.

MR. HOGAN said the table was generated because Representative
Seaton had a question in House HES about the difference between
Denali Kidcare’'s 175 percent of poverty rate, versus DET' s 185
percent of poverty rate. He apol ogized for not know ng what al
of the acronyms stand for, but said he could get that
information to the commttee.

SENATOR WLKEN noted the table was “effective 9/1/2002” and
asked if there was information from Septenber of 2004.

MR. HOGAN said he was not sure, but would be glad to get that
i nformation.

SENATOR GUESS read fromthe [commttee packet, DET Bill Summary,

3/31/04], “clearly communicate that costs incurred will only be
covered up to the anobunt appropriated by the Legislature.” She
reiterated [M. Rainery] previously expressed concern about a
contradiction between the bill’s intent and the Letter of
Intent, commenting this is a little different nessage than,
“we’ll ook high and low for any other noney, and nove nobney
around.”

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 6- April 2, 2004



MR. HOGAN responded he wunderstands that interpretation and
acknow edged that a better job of incorporating the intent
| anguage attached to the proposed statute could have been done
as it is the departnent’s intent to follow what is attached to
the statute. He apol ogi zed and said they would do a better job
of re-wording.

CHAIR DYSON recollected that since |ast week, the Letter of
Intent has been attached, and other |anguage wasn't simlarly
nodi fi ed.

SENATOR @QUESS commented there is still a contradiction because
the statute has not been changed.

CHAI R DYSON noted the statute now says “shall.”

SENATOR GUESS said she had two nore questions. She asked if
“shall” in Section 3 was nullified because of Section 2.

VR, HOGAN said he didn’'t see this as nullifying or
contradictory. It clearly stipulates the departnment is required
to pay for the service. Section 2 states the departnent is
obligated to pay for the service up to the appropriation, wth
the understanding that we will look for dollars throughout the
departnent to help pay for the service.

SENATOR GUESS nentioned, “Letter of Intents are nice, but that’s
all they are. The statute still says it’s |imted by the anount
appropriated by the Legislature.” She asked, “Wat happens when
you run out of noney, and you can’t use any of these funding
sources?”’

MR. HOGAN said the departnment would go to great |engths to nake
sure this doesn’t happen. |If it does happen, unfortunately, the
wor se case scenario is the person would go to API. Capacity has
previ ously been exceeded at APlI; it’s not the best situation to
be in and would create pressure to nove people out of API. “W
will do the best we can to nmanage the system with the resources
we have avail able,” he stated.

SENATOR GUESS expressed concern that priorities could change
with persons other than M. Hogan or the conm ssioner, and
“we’re allowi ng that change by keeping this |anguage. There is
not hing ensuring that we either don’t turn away soneone, or put
that cost to API, or on the DET facility.”

SENATE HES COW TTEE -7- April 2, 2004



MR. ROD BETIT, President, Alaska State Hospital and Nursing

Associ ation (ASHNA), cormented the departnent has wor ked
diligently to close the gaps on ASHNA's concerns, but they
haven’t been closed conpletely. The language in Section 2
trunps everything else in this legislation, he said. Fi nances
for this program are down $1 mllion for FY 05, and there’s no
assurance of having funds to fill that gap. |In talking with the

departnment, there is agreenent that a lot of patient care days
won't be saved when there’'s co-nmanagenent between the facility
and the department, whether they use their own clinicians or
First Health’s. In looking at Bartlett Regional Hospital’s
information, a |lot of extended stays have been approved and are
related to the difficulty in getting mnmedications to work
effectively with this population, and that isn't going to go
away, he said.

1:59 p. m

MR. BETIT continued that both Fairbanks and Bartlett - the
facilities nost affected by this - are conmmtted to this program
and have seen the good it’s done in the community. Their intent
is not to pull out if this legislation goes forward. There wl|
be concern because notwithstanding the departnent’s Dbest
efforts, if noney runs out, sonething has to give. He said he
suggested to the departnent that the Letter of Intent include an
additional statenent indicating that if everything else fails
and the worse case devel ops, the departnment will work with these
comunity hospitals to ensure these patients transfer to APl as
qui ckly and safety as possible. Care would be delivered there,
rat her than the community hospitals having to figure out what to
do. This would avoid discharging a patient into the comunity,
who is not safe to be there, or providing care w thout getting
paid for it, thereby building up a significant problem for that

comunity hospital. He suggested the Letter of Intent have that
kind of commtnent in it, and it wouldn't un-do Section 2,
because if there’s no noney, they won't pay. It would assure

hospital admnistrators that the departnent’s intent is to not
| eave patients in community hospitals if they can’t pay for it,
but to nove themto API. Earlier testinony on SB 364 indicated
that there mght be a need to go over the 72 beds, at tinmes. A
choice is being nmade whether this can be provided in the
comunity or through API.

MR. BETIT addressed how hospitals are paid, and said ASHNA
doesn’t support paying psychiatric stays at a different rate.
Al aska has chosen to pay hospitals on an average rate, neaning
al | diagnoses are |unped together. The departnent uses a very

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 8- April 2, 2004



sophisticated process to review each hospital’s costs, and
refers to Medicare, the federal principle of what’s allowable,
and negotiates with the hospital for an all-inclusive rate. By
paying a diagnosis differently, this takes the costs - and this
is one of the |ower-cost procedures a hospital perfornms for care
— and those costs then disappear in the equation in terns of
rei mbursenent. Typically in hospital reinbursenent, there is
either an all-inclusive or a diagnoses rate. DRG refers to
di agnoses-rel ated-group, and if we want to nove down that road,
we can’t pick and choose di agnoses to pay differently.

MR. BETIT added that the department could |ook at the books,
under the provider agreenent each facility signs with the state,
as a condition of getting Medicaid paynent. He expl ai ned t hat
when Medicaid pays, once a rate is agreed upon wth the
departnment, that is paynent in full, and “we can’'t go after the
patient for anything nore.”

CHAI R DYSON asked what the reasonable mark-up is for hospital
supplies over the whol esal e cost.

MR, BETIT said there is a “firestorm of controversy across the
country” as these costs are sonetines enornous, and result in
the uninsured population having to pay possibly 10 tinmes what
ot hers pay. Each hospital has a charity policy, whether it’'s
150 percent or 300 percent of poverty, and won't go after a
patient unable to pay those bill charges. He said hospitals
around the country have to devise a nore rational way of dealing
with this.

CHAI R DYSON nentioned a woman purchasing di apers and then being
able to get reinbursed at 4.5 tines that anount.

MR. BETIT responded this was a red herring because the bill
doesn’t necessarily correlate to what's paid; that distortion
will get straightened out in the next few years because
“Congress has had it as well.”

SENATOR GREEN noved to report SB 364 as anended, with the Letter
of Intent J[as anended], out of comttee wth individual
reconmendat i ons and acconpanying fiscal note.

SENATOR DAVI S obj ect ed. She said it costs nore to be at API
than at comunity-based hospitals, and in winter, it is filled
to capacity, and this probably just won't work. She said good
intentions are good, but it’'s “what you do in the end” that
counts. Lawnakers/policy makers should not go on intent wthout

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 9- April 2, 2004



having a plan in place. If Section 2 were renoved, she would
vote for the bill. She wanted the departnent to have the
flexibility and accountability needed, but not the way it 1is
currently.

CHAI R DYSON suggested that a report be requested in January.
SENATOR DAVI S conmented this woul d be heard again.

CHAIR DYSON asked M. Hogan if there was an internal nethod of
tracking nonthly expenditures against the allotted budget, so
projections of being short could be indicated prior to the next
budget cycle.

MR. HOGAN replied this was correct.

CHAIR DYSON said in January (if he were here), he would
appreci ate M. Hogan rem ndi ng hi m about seeing that.

MR. HOGAN responded they’d be glad to do that.

A roll call vote was taken. Senators W/ ken, Green, and Dyson
voted in favor of the notion; Senators Guess and Davis voted
against it. CsSB 364 (HES), with the Letter of Intent, as

anended, noved out of commttee.

There being no further business to conme before the commttee, he
adj ourned the neeting at 2:10 p. m

SENATE HES COW TTEE -10- April 2, 2004



